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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

Through these multifaceted initiatives, we remain steadfast in our dedication to
nurturing a well-maintained estate environment that not only meets the needs of our
residents but also creates a sustainable home for all.















TOFACILITATETOWN

LEVERAGING ON TECHNOLOGY ’
A
COUNCIL OPERATIONS !

As we work to improve the estate environment for our residents, our Town Council has been exploring ways
to tap onto technology to facilitate our operations. We have implemented several technology-driven
initiatives that assist us in some areas of our work such as fagade inspections and deterring disamenities
from occurring in common areas.

DRONES FOR PERIODIC FACADE INSPECTION

The utilisation of drones to carry out our Periodic Facade Inspection (PFI) not only enhances safety but also
improves efficiency while reducing the need for labour-intensive procedures. Equipped with Artificial
Intelligence (Al) and thermal technology, these drones assess the condition of HDB facades and identify
defects such as cracks, dilapidations, and water seepages. Moreover, we protect the privacy of our
residents by employing Al masking techniques. Residents of the blocks undergoing such inspections are
also informed of the operations beforehand.



STATIC CAMERAS

Another technology which we have leveraged on is
static cameras. The static cameras are strategically
deployed in our HDB estates to monitor and deter
various issues such as illegal dumping, urination,
smoking, pigeon feeding, and illegal parking in
commaon areas. Such surveillonce system along with
the assistance from the relevant agencies allow us to
address such incidents more effectively, ensuring our
public spaces remain clean and safe for all residents.

STAIR CLIMBERS

As we continue to revitalise and modernise our
matured lifts to improve lift serviceability, we remain
mindful of the inconvenience experienced by residents
with mobility issues. In response, we have introduced
stair climbers to aid our conservancy teams in
transporting the offected residents to the nearest lift
landings for their essential medical appointments when
the lifts were shut down to carry out these works.
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ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT

Our Town Council has implemented a comprehensive Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework
that follows established risk management standards such as 1S031000 and COSO ERM Framework.
This framework guides the Town Council in identifying, analysing, and evaluating risks, as well as
implementing and monitoring risk mitigation plans.

Every year, the Town Council conducts an enterprise risk assessment that identifies risks affecting its
business objectives. The assessment evaluates risks in four categeries: Financial, Operational,
Compliance, and Information Technology. Internal controls associated with these risks are assessed,
and mitigating plans are implemented to reduce the Council's risk exposure.

This annual exercise provides a clear view of risks to the Management Team, Town Councillors, and
Stakeholders. It also helps prioritise and allocate resources for risk management and promotes
accountability and awareness of the Town Council's efforts to manage risks effectively.

Following this review, the Council believes that our Marine Parade Town Council's ERM Framework,
along with the internal control policies and procedures, are adequate to manage the risks affecting
the Town Council.
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Town Councillors & Standing Committees
(28 August 2022 to 27 August 2024)

Marine Parade Town Council selects and appoints councillors based on personal
attributes such as integrity, honesty, responsibility, and their alignment with the Town
Council's Mission. Appointed councillors generally have the ability to communicate and
reach out to residents, and build relationship to reflect their needs. At least two-thirds of
the appointed councillors shall be residents of any housing estate of the Board within
the Town. Key councillors taking charge of committees shall have the core skills and/or
competencies in the relevant technical field (such as finance, accounting, audit, estate

management, contract administration or communications).

ELECTED MEMBERS

Chairman: Mr Lim Biow Chuan PBM
Vice-Chairman; Ms Tin Pei Ling
Vice-Chairman: Mr Mohd Fahmi Aliman

Elected Members:

Mr Edwin Teng Chuan Fai
Dr Tan See Leng

Mr Seah Kian Peng

EXECUTIVE COMMITEE

Chairman: Mr Lim Biow Chuan PEM
Vice-Chairman: Ms Tin Pei Ling
Vice-Chairmnan: Mr Mohd Fahmi Alimman

Elected Members:

Mr Edwin Teng Chuan Fai
Dr Tan See Leng

Mr Seah Kian Peng

Members:

Mr Ang Bee Hock BEM

Dr Chua Ee Chek BBM, JP

Ms Eileen Teo Cheo Tea PEM

Mr Frederick Ho Wee Khoon FEM
Mr Goh Yong Seng PEM

Mr Justin Fong Cheng Wah PEM
Mr Lee Tee Loon PBM

Dr Lim Lan Yuon BEM (L), JP

Ms Lydia Ong Li Yan PEM

Mr Philip Tan Ling Kwok PEM

Mr Yusof Bin Abdul Lateaf BEM

FINANCE COMMITEE

Advisor: Mr Seah Kian Peng
Chairman: Mr Justin Fong Cheng Wah PBM
Vice-Chairman: Mr Ang Bee Hock BBM

Members:

Ms Aw Mui Ling

Mr Arthur Chai Shaw Pu

Ms Chris Chu Al Keow PEM

Mr Jeryl Lim Tswen Jiann

Mr Lim Ming Hok

Mr Patrick Chua Song Hui FEM
Mr Pradeep Kumar Deshi PEM
Mr Raymaond Gan Chun Pin
Mr Stephen Lim Wee Tiong

Mr Tan Yong Min BEM

Mz Teo Qi Shan

TENDERS & CONTRACTS COMMITEE

Advisor Mr Mohd Fahmi Aliman
Chairmarn: Mr Lee Tee Loon PEM
Vice-Chairman: Dr Chua Ee Chek BBM (L), JP

Members:

Mr Daniel Chan Kok Leong PEM
Mr Dick Lum Chee Seng

Ms Jenny Ho Lay Hong

Mr Kum Jing Shen Joey

Mr Mg Chong Soon

Mr Raymond Chan Leng Chye PBM
Ms Shirley Yong Mei Lin

Mr Simon Wong Sai Cheong
Mr Thormas Thong Ming Yop
Ms Tricia Soh Mang Hong PEM



ESTATE MANAGEMENT COMMITEE

Chairman: Ms Eileen Teo Cheo Tee PBM
Vice-Chairman: Ms Lydia Ong Li Yan PBM

Members:

Mr Baba Maharauf Carrim
Mr Chan Yee Kew PBM

Mr Govindan Meyyappan
Ms Hoe Kwee Eng

Ms Janet Chan

Mr Koh Chin Ann

Mr Lee Joon Yong PBM

Mr Loo Chin Nong PBM

Mr Rama Kerisna PBM

Ms Tan Yun Juan Kittie

Mr William G Fletcher PBM
Ms Yayah Ambuhang Annatrista

AUDIT & RISK COMMITEE

Advisor: Dr Lim Lan Yuan BBM (L), JP
Chairman: Mr Philip Tan Ling Kwok PBM
Vice-Chairman: Mr Goh Yong Seng PBM

Members:

Ms Chung Kim Man

Ms Lily Teo Hiok Hoon PBM
Mr Ngoi Khor Peng PBM

Mr Ong Pang Yaw

Mr Rohmat Sawie PBM

Ms Ruby Ong Siew Kim PBM
Mr Tan Ai Koong PBM

Mr Yaw Keat Jau

Mr Yong Chun Yee PBM

PUBLICITY AND OUTREACH COMMITEE

Advisor: Ms Tin Pei Ling
Chairman: Mr Frederick Ho Wee Khoon PBM
Vice-Chairman: Mr Yusof Bin Abdul Lateef BBM

Members:

Ms Alice Low

Ms Joyce Wong Shu Ling

Mr Lim Zhi Hao

Mr Markus Tan Sien Hwong PBM
Mr Melvin Chua Ee Song BBM
Ms Pang Yee Sum

Mr Edmund Yu Tor Ann
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF MARINE PARADE TOWN COUNCIL
(Established under the Town Councils Act 1988)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Marine Parade Town Council (the "Town Council™),
which comprise the statement of financial position of the Town Council as at 31 March 2023, the statement of
income and expenditure, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in Town Council funds
and statement of cash flows of the Town Council for the financial year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 5 to 41.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of the Town Council are properly drawn up in accordance
with the provisions of the Town Councils Act 1988 (the "Act”) and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore
(“FRSs") so as to present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Town Council as at 31 March
2023 and the financial performance, changes in Town Council funds and cash flows of the Town Council for the
financial year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing ("SSAs"). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Town Council in accordance with the Accounting
and Corporate Regulatory Authority ("ACRA”) Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountanis
and Accounting Entfities ("ACRA Code") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other infermation comprises the information included
in the Annual Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF MARINE PARADE TOWN COUNCIL
(Established under the Town Councils Act 1988)

Responsibility of Management and Those charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting
controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from
unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as
necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets,

A Town Council is established under the Act and may be dissolved by the Minister's order published in the
Gazette. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Town Council's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless there is intention to wind up the Town Council or for the Town Council
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Town Council's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Town Council's internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF MARINE PARADE TOWN COUNCIL
(Established under the Town Councils Act 1988)

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exisis related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Town Council's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to medify our opinion. Cur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Town Council to cease to continue as a going concern,

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial stalements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contral that we
identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Opinion
In our opinian:

(a) the receipts, expenditure and investment of moneys and the acquisition and disposal of assets by the
Town Council during the financial year are, in all material respects, in accordance with the provisions
of the Act; and

{b) proper accounting and other records have been kept, including records of all assets of the Town Council
whether purchased, donated or otherwise.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with S5As. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibifities for the Compfiance Audit section of our report. We are independent
of the Town Council in accordance with the ACRA Code together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on management's compliance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF MARINE PARADE TOWN COUNCIL
(Established under the Town Councils Act 1988)

Responsibifity of Management for compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

Management is responsible for ensuring that the receipts, expenditure, investment of moneys and the acquisition
and disposal of assets, are in accordance with the provisions of the Act. This responsibility includes implementing
accounting and internal controls as management determines are necessary to enable compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Auditor’s responsibility for the compliance audit

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the management's compliance based on our audit of the financial
statements. We planned and performed the compliance audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the receipts, expenditure, investment of moneys and the acquisition and disposal of assets, are in accordance
with the provisions of the Act.

Our compliance audit includes obtaining an understanding of the internal control relevant to the receipts,
expenditure, investment of moneys and the acquisition and disposal of assets; and assessing the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements from non-compliance, if any, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town Council's internal control. Because of the inherent
limitations in any accounting and internal control system, non-compliances may nevertheless occur and not be
detected.

- mw{?

Ecovis Assurance LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

14 September 2023



MARINE PARADE TOWN COUNCIL

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2023

Note 2023 2022
§ $
TOWN COUNCIL FUNDS
Residential Property
Accumulated surplus 4 15,665,448 13,253,232
Sinking Funds
Ordinary Sinking Fund 5 41,273,369 47,950,180
Lift Replacemeant Fund B 40,238,108 40,750,916
81,511,478 88,701,096
Town Improvement and Project Fund T 256,680 T67.088
a7.433.606 102,721,416
Commercial Property
Accumulated surplus 4 540,411 676,126
Sinking Funds
Ordinary Sinking Fund 8 27673502 27,076,774
Lift Replacement Fund 6 10.954.213 9,940,104
38,627,715 37.016,878
Town Improvement and Project Fund 7 22,320 146,112
39,190,446 37.839.116
Total funds 136,624,052 140,560,532
Represented by:
Mon-current assets
Piant and equipment -] 68,262 76,659
Right-of-use assets 8 1,667,769 1,788 418
1,736,031 1.865,077
Current assets
Financial assals at fair value through profit or loss 10 40,527,223 "
Interest receivable 1,578,051 148,327
Conservancy and service fees receivables 11 1,058,687 1,128,253
Other receivables 12 7,470,413 9,609,078
Receivables for Neighbourhood Renewal Programme 15 BBE.486 1,201,204
Electrical Load Upgrading Programme
Cash and short term deposits 13 101,057,230 1358.055.244
152 578.090 150,142,106
Total assets 154,314,121 152,007,183
Less:
Hon-current liability
Lease liabilities 14 (943.892) {1,044, 164)
Current liabilities
Lease liabilities 14 (515,138) {504,606)
Conservancy and service fees received in advance {871,764) (722 845)
Payables and accrued expenses 16 (14,646, 966) {8,620,139)
Income tax payable 17 {712,304) (554.897)
(16,746,177} (10,402 487)
Met assets 136,624,052 140,560,532
LiM BIOW CHUAN PEM ANTHONY ONG ENG ANN PBM
Chairman Secratary

Date: 14 September 2023

The accompanying notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunchion with these financial statements.



MARINE PARADE TOWN COUNCIL

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Note 2023 2022
$ $
Operating income
Conservancy and Service fees 4 43,425,848 42,737,334
Less: Operating income transfer to Ordinary Sinking Fund 5 {11,290,727) (11,111,717)
Operaling Incame transfer to Lift Replacement Fund G (6.079.617) {5.983,225)
{minimum required by law) 26,055,504 25,642,392
Agency fees 4,18 2,903,260 272323
Cither income 4,19 2622183 2,800,286
31,580,957 31,155,001
Less: Operating expenditura
Cleaning works (6,299,743) (6,277,785)
Managing agent's fees 25 (4.612,867) (4.516.113)
Lift mainienance (7.626,650) (7.754.771)
Other works and maintenance (4,795,237) (4.368.672)
Water and electricity (10,215.661) (7.595,772)
General and administrative expenditure 20 {2.168.322) {1,984,4086)
(35,718,480) (32,497,519)
Operating deficit {4,137.523) (1,342,518)
Add:  Investment income 4 227.375 94,305
Deficit bafore income tax and government grants (3.910,148) (1.,248,213)
Less: Income tax 17 {140,681) (119,110)
Goods and services fax 21 (415,801) {362.965)
{556,482) (482,075)
Deficit before government grants (4,466,630) {1,730,288)
Add: Government grants 22 16,770,938 168.277,199
Less: Transfer to Ordinary Sinking Fund 5, 22 (2.688,344) (2,622,209}
Less: Transfer to Lift Replacement Fund 6,22 (5,207,036} (5,134,474)
Less: Transfer to Town Improvement and Project fund 7, 22 {2,668.386) {2469.271)
6,206,172 6,051,245
SURPLUS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 1,739,542 4,320,957
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS AS AT 1 APRIL 13,929,358 10,202,737
Add:  Transfer from Town Improvement Project Fund 7 815,959 318,864
Less: Appropriation to Town Improvement Project Fund ¥ {279,000} {913,200)
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS AT 31 MARCH 16,205,859 13,929,358

o7

_-—-"._FF
LIM BIOW CHUAN PBM
Chairman

Date: 14 September 2023

o
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ANTHONY 6NG ENG ANN PEM
Secretary

The accompanying notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial stalements.




MARINE PARADE TOWN COUNCIL

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Mote 2023 2022
g s
SURPLUS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 1,739,542 4,320,957
MOVEMENT OF VARIOUS FUNDS
Ordinary Sinking Fund 5 (6.080,083) 177,448
Lift Replacement Fund 6 501,302 2,383,871
Town Improvement and Project Fund 7 (97.241) (481,078)
(5,676,022) 2,080,243

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME FOR THE

FINANCIAL YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO TOWN

COUNCIL FUND3 (3,936,480) 6,401,200

- o
== ég 3
e Ny

LIM BIOW CHUAN PBM ANTHONY/ONG ENG ANN PBM
Chairman Secretary

Date ;. 14 September 2023

The accompanying notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.



MARINE PARADE TOWN COUNCIL

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Note Total Residential Property Commerciat Property Carpark

$ $ $ $
Balance as at 1 April 2021 134,158,322 o7.364,234 36,775,026 -
Surplus for the yaar 6,401,200 4 267 481 1,064,018 1,068 1M
Inter-funds transfer 4 - 1.066,70 - {1,060,701)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 140,560,732 102721416 37,530.116 -
Baiance as at 1 April 2022 140,560,532 102,721,416 37838116
{Deficit) { Surplus far the year {3,938,480) {5,407 ,041) 1,351,233 1,119,231
Inter-funds transfer 4 - 1,119,231 - 1,116,231}
Balance as at 31 March 2023 136,624,052 97,433,606 3%,190,245 -
The net surplusd {deficit) for he year comprises the following: Hote 2023 2022

3 5
Accumulated surglus 4 1,738,542 4,320,857
Ordinary Sinking Fund 5 {6,080 083) 177,448
Lift Replacerment Furtd & 01 302 2383871
Town Impravemeant and Project Fund 7 {87 .241) {481.076)

{3,936,480}) 6,401,200

The accompanying notes form an integral pan of and should be read in conjunction with these financisl statemeants.



MARINE PARADE TOWN COUNCIL

STATEMEMT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ERDED 31 MARCH 2023

Nota 2023 2022
$ $

Qperatinng Activities
Deficit before income fayx and government granls {3,910,148) (1.248213)
Adjusiments for:
Operating income franster 1o Ordinary Sinking Fund & 11,290,727 1,111,717
Operating income transfer 1o Lifl Replacement Furud 3] 6070617 5,083,225
Interast income (227,375} {94,305)
Allowance f {Reversal} credit loss on operating receivables 11142 $5.080 {2,407}
Depraciation of right-of-use assets g 52252 573,128
Lease inferasl expenses 20 2011 46,167
Depreciation of plant and eguipmert 8 45478 42 503
Qperzating cash lows hefore changes in working capital 13,857 653 15,404 815
Movement in working capital;
Operahng receivables 584,219 2.753,705
Operghing payables 6,176,751 (8.581,775)
Mot cash flows generated from operations 20,727 623 10,176,746
Goods and services Lax 21 (776,609} (604,758
Ordinary Sinking Fund expendilure 5 {21.232,205) {13,740,159)
Lift Replacemenl Fund axpenditure G (15,951,477} {11,564,135}
Town Improvement and Project Fund expenditure paicd 7 (2,765,627} (2,550,247}
Heighbourhood Renewal Programme and Electical Load Upgrading

Pragramme expenditure paid 13 (610,826) {801,784}
lncarme lax paid 17 {327 888) {433,826}
MNet cash used in operating activities {20,937, 710 {20.318,114)
Investing Activities
Puichase of plant and equipment 8 {37 082) (26,188)
Decrease in fived deposils 13 655,000 000 7.409 2325
Placement wilh fund manager 10 {40,000 000) -
Interest and investment incame recaived 623,235 1,379,720
et cash generated from investing activities 25,546,153 8,762,868
Finanecing Activities
Governmerntt grants received 18,324,860 11,829,822
Repayment of lease liabiities 14 {593,354) (608,635)
Funding received for Neighbourhood Renewsl Programme and Etectiical 15 525 544 168,272

Load Upgrading Programme
Funding received for Lifi Enhancemeant Programmed Seleclive Lik &5 4,568,574 3,120,109

Replacement Programume
MNet cash generated from financing activities 23228624 14,509,568
Mot increass in cash and cash equivalents 27,927,057 2,954, 322
Cash and cash equivalents st beginning of yvear 73,055,244 0,100,822
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 13 100,992,311 73,055,244

The accompanying notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these inancial statements.
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MARINE PARADE TOWN COUNCIL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Financial Year Ernded 31 March 2023

2.3

Geperal Information

Marine Parade Town Gouncil (the “Town Council’) was formed on 5 July 1982 under the Town Councils Act 1888,
The principal funclions of the Town Council are 1o conlrol, manage, maintain and improve the commaon property af
residential, other commercial property &nd market and food cenlres in the housing estates of the Housing and
Development Board {"HOB"} within the Town, The Town consists of Marine Parads Gioup Representalion
Consliluency, MacPherson Single Member Consliluency and Mounlbatten Single Member Conshituency,

The piincipal ofice of operalions is at 50 Marine Terrace #01-265, Singapoie 440050,

The finrancial statemants of the Town Council for the finaneial year ended 31 March 2023 were authorisad for issue
i accoidance wilh a resolution of the Town Council on 14 September 2023

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of preparalion of financial statements

The hnancizl statements of the Town Council have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of e Town
Councils Act 1588 {Ihe “Act"} and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore {TFRS:").

The Anancial stalements kave been prepared on a historical cost basis excepl as disclosed in the accounting policies
melowy,

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of Ihe consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid lo transfer a liability in an ordery transaction
hetween market parlicipanls at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
astimaled using ancther valualion lechniqus. In estimating the Fair value of an asset or a lizbility, the Town Council
tzkes inlo account the characteristics of the assel or liability which market panticipants would Lake inlo account when
pricing he assat or liability at the measurerment date, Fair valye for measurement andfor disclosure purposas in
these financial staternents is determined on such a basis, excepl for leasing ransackons that are within the scope of
FRS 118 Leases, and measurements that have some simitarities o Rair value but 2re not fair value, such as value in
use in FRS 36 Impairment of Assels.

In addition, for inancizl reporfing purposes, falr value measurements are categorised inko Level 1, 2 or 3, based on
the degree to which the inpuls to the fair value measurements are observahle and the significance of the inputs to
e faiv value measurement in ils enlirely, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inpuls are guoled prices funadjusted) in active markets for identical assels o ligbilities that e entity
oan access at the measurament date;

- Level 2 inpuls are inplls, okher than quoted prices included within Leve! 1, hat aie observable for the assel or
lighility, either dirgclly or indirectly, and

. Leve! 3 inpuls are unobservahle inpuls for the asset o liability.

10



MARINE PARADE TOWN COUNCIL

NOTES TQO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Financia! Year Ended 31 March 2022

2,

2.1

22

2.3

Summary of significant accounting policies {confinuad)
Basis of preparation of financial statements {continued)

The financial statemenls are presented in Singapore dollar which is lhe Town Council's functional curency. All
financial information presented in Singapore dollar has bean rounded o the nearest dollars, unless otherwise stated.

Adoption of rew and amended standards and interpretations

The aceounling policies adopted are consislent with those of the previous financial year except thal in the currenl
financial year, fhe Town Council has adopied all the new and amended slandards which are effective for annual
finaneial pericds beginning on or afier T April 2022, The adoption of these standards did nof have any significanl
effect on the financial slaterments of the Town Council for the curfent oF prior years.

Slandards issued but nof yet effaclive

A The date of authorsalion of these financial slatements, thare are FRSS, INT FRSs5 and amendments to FRS that
arg relevant to the Town Counci! that were issuad but are not yel efflective, The manzgement anticipates thal the
adoption of these FRSs, INT FRSs and amendmeanls to FRS in future perods will not have a matenial impact on the
financhal slaterments of the Town Coundcil in the period of their inilial adeplion.

Town Counci Funds
In accordance with Section 471} of the Town Councils Act, separale funds are established lo account {or the
managerment of the different types of properties. The lypes of properties curmently under the management of the

Town Councd are as follows:

» Residential Property
« Commertial Property

Car parks are managed by the Town Council for the HOB on an agency basis.

The rouline fund retated o propedies under managemeant, together with Sinking Funds and Town Improvemenl and
Froject Fund, form the Town Councll lunds,

All monies received by the Town Couneil are paid into and relaled expenditure is mat out of the appropriate hunds

set up for each property type managed. Assels and figbilities of the varous lunds of the Town Council are pocled in
the stalerment of financial posilion.
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MARINE PARADE TOWN COUNCGIL

HOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
Faor lhe Financial ¥Year Ended 31 March 20232

2. Summary of significant accounting pelicies {continued)

2.3 Town Council Funds {contipued)

Sinking Funds
Sinking Funds comprise of Ordinary Sinking Fund and Lift Replacemeant Fund,

Under the Town Councils Act, the Minisiry of Mational Devetlopment may, rom time to time, prescribe the minimum
amounls of conservancy and service fees and granls-in-aid to be paid into the Sinking Funds olher than Lifl

Replacement Fund matching granl which does nol have a prescrbed minimum amount k0 be paid inle the Sinking
Funds.

{iy Ordinary Sinking Fund

In accordance with Section 47{4) of the Town Councils Act, separate Sinking Funds are eslablished for
improvement o, managemenl and mainlenance of residenlial and commercial properlies. These funds are
maintained as part of the Town Councll Funds.

The minimwm amoonts o e paid by propery type, into the Ondinary Sinking Fund is as follows:

FProperly type service Percenlage of conservancy and service fees and grants-
in-atd
{i}y  1-room o S-room and Executive 26% (2022: 26%) of conservancy and service fees and
grants-in-aid
(i}  Shop with living accommeodslion 26%, {2022: 26%) of conservancy and service fees and
granls-in-aid
{iii}) Comnmercial property 26% (2022: 26%) of conservancy and service fees and
grants-in-aid

These mintmum conlributions are reated as operaling income transfers and are deducted from conservancy
antl service fees and government grants in the slatemenl of ineome and exXpenditure,

The Cndinary Sinking Fund is ulilised for cyclical works, including major repainting, renewal of replacement of
raofing syslem, water lanks, pumps and water supply system, ightring proteclion syslem and escafalors, major
repairs and maintenance of the common area and contributions o the HOB in respecl of general upgrading
Wworks carried out on he common property under the Housing and Bevelopment Acl.
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MARINE PARADE TOWN COUNCIL

NMOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March 2023

2,

Surmmary of significant acenunting policies {continued)

2.3 Town Cauncil Funds {cantipued)

24

25

{ii} Lift Replacement Fund
In accordance with Seciion 47(5) of lhe Town Councils Acl, Town Councils are required to establish a new Lift
Replacemert Fund with efisct fram 1 April 2017, The eslablishment of the LRF is a standalone fund to be carved
out from the existing Sinking Funds and ring-fenced specifically for lift replacemenls and other lift-related
replacement works,

The minimum amounts to be paid by property bype, inte The Lilt Replacement Fund i5 as follows:

Propertly type service Percentage of conservancy and service {fees and grants-
ir-ald
{i 1-room bo 5-noom and Executive 14% (2022 14%} of conservancy and service fees and
grantg-in-gicd
(i Shop with living accommodation 14% (2022: 14%) of conservancy and service fees and
granks-in-aid
fil  Commercial property 14% {2022 14%) of conservancy and service fees and
gramnts-in-aid

These minimum contribubons are reated as operating income ransfers and are deducted from conservancy
and service fees and governmment grants in the statement of income and expenditure,

The Lift Replacement Fund is uliised for major lift works such as capilal expenditure including works, plang,
equipment, appliances and insurance premivm related b Whe replacement of [Rs or Nift upgrading works camied
aut on the common property under the Housing and Development Ach

Town [mprovernent and Project Fund
Town Improverant and Project Fund {"TIPF ") is established and maintained as part of the Town Council Funds. This
lund is ulilised for improvement and development works in the Town,

The hund is set up by transfer of hund from ke accumulated suiplus to fund specific projects to be carried oul. In
addifion, the Town Council receives funding lor approved projects under the Community Improvement Projecls
Committae ("CIPC"} scheme. This fund is patd through lhe Cilizens Consultalive Committees ("CCC)

Inter-fund transfers

The Town Council may make inter-hund transfers with the criteria a5 set out in Section 47(12) and Section 57(1)(i) of
the Town Councils Agt 1988, and Rule 114 of Town Councils Financial Rules.

allocation of general overheads

Expenditure not specifically related to any property lype managad, such as administralive overheads, tree planting
and pruning ete, are allocated Lo the varous propedy lypes using equivalent dwelling units ("EDU") a5 follows!

Property Type Eguivalent Dwelling Unit(s}
2023 2022

1 REasidential Property Unit i 1

1 Commercial Property Unit 2 2

& Carlols or 36 Motorcycle lots ar 4 Loy lols 1 i

Such altocation by ECU is not applied i the Sinking Funds and Town Improvement and Project Fund,
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MARINE PARADE TOWN COUNCIL

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAl STATEMENTS
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March 2023

2. Summary of significant accounting pelicies {cantinued)

2.8 Government granis

The Town Council receives five types of grants from the Government: Service and Conservanty Charges ("S5&CCT7)
grant, paymenl from CCCs, Goods and Serices Tax {"GSTT) subvenlion grant, Lik Replacement Fund Matching
Geant and Likt Maintenance Grar {"LMGT),

{in

{m)

(it}

{iv)

(v}

Senvice and Conservancy Charges (S&CC) operaling grants to meet the current year's operaling expenditure
are taken to the statement of income and expenditure, except to the extent which is required Lo be ansferred
to Ordinary Sinking Fund and Lift Replacement Fund based on the amount prestnbed,

Payments from CCC are granled to provide lunding support for comimunily improvement projecis under CIPC
scheme,

The GST Subvention is given as grant-in-aid to the Tawn Council ko assisl Town Council for absorbing the G3T
increases in Service and Conservancy Charges for HOB residenlial flats. The grant is taken to the statement of
income and expenditure, except to the extent which is required o be transferred o Ordinary Sinking Fund and
Lift Replacement Fund based on the ampunt prescribed.

Liit Replacement Fund {LRF} Matching Grant is given as grant-in-aid lo the Town Coundil by MMD to match 50%
of Town Council's corttibubions W the Lift Replacement Fund ko swpplernent Town Council's savings, The
contnbutions inclusive of {a) quarledy contabutions from Service and Conservancy Charges collections and
gther granls-in-aids, including voluntary contrbulions beyond the minimurn LRF contribution rate; and (b)
voluntary contribulion of accumulated surplus Lo the LRF at the end of & inanctal year, as allowed undor Section
47{12) of the amended Town Councile Acl,

Lift Mainlenance Grant (LMG) is given a5 granl-in-aid to the Town Council to cope with lhe higher lift-related
servicing and maintenance oosts. LMG disbursed to Town Council anpually and the amounl disbursed is 5600
for every lift (bolth residential and commercial) maintained by the Town Council, The grant is taken to the
statement of income and expendilure, except o the extent which is required to be transferred ko Ordinary Sinking
Fund and Lift Replacement Fund Based an the amount prescribed,

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance thal the attached condition
will be comnpliad wilh and lhat the grant will be received. Grant in recognilion of specific expendilures is recognised
as income over the penods necessany to match lhem wilth the related expenditure that they are mlended o
compensate on a syslemalic basis unless the accounting treatment is specified. \Where Ihe grant relates to an asset,
the fair value is recognised as deferred capital granl on the stalement of Rnancial position and is amortized W
stalerent of income and expenditure and gther comprehensive income over the expactad uzel life of the relevant
asset by equal annual instalmanl.
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MARINE PARADE TOWN COUNCIL

NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Finzncial Yeas Ended 31 March 2023

2.7

2.8

summary of significant accounting pelicies (continuad)
Revenue recognition

Conservancy and service fees are charged on a monthly ko the lessees and tenants of the Housing and Development
Board (HOB) Rats, shopsfolices and marketfood stalls lowards the mainlenance and upkeep of the common
property under the Town Council. Conservancy and service fees are allocated between eperating neame and
Ovdinary Sinking Fund and Lifl Replacement Fund in accordance with lhe Tewn Councils Acl 1988 Conservancy and
service fees are recoprised as a perdarmance obligation over lime.

Agency fees received for rouline maintenance of HOB's car parks and cofaman property within 1he town is recognised
as a performance obligation dver time,

Interest income from hived deposits is recognised on a lime proporlion basis using the eeclive interest rates,
Incante from funds placed with und manages is recognised based on fair vatue through profit or loss.

Income from temporary occupation ficenses and usage of void deck or other common propery is recegnised on &
cash basis,

Income Lax

Tax is provided an he follawing incoms:

{iy Income dgerived from investments and bank deposits,

{i} Fees, rent and other charges received from non-restdents or non-owners of properties in e Town,
(i} Donatisns from non-residents or non-owners of propedies in the Town; and

fiv) Agency fees derived from acting as agent for the HDB.

tn respecl of government grants received, the Town Countil has been granted remission under Section D2{2) of
Income Tax Act 1947,

lncome tax is accounled using the asset and liabilily method that requites the recognilion of Laxes payable or
refundable for the current year and deferred tax liabilittes and assels for the future tax conseguence of evenls Hhal
have been recognised in the financial statemenls or tax returns, The measurements of currenl and deferred lax
liabilittes and assets are based on provizions of the enacled or subslantizlly enacled tax laws, and the effecls of
future changes in tax laws oF rates are not anlicipaled. Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax cumently
payable and deferrad tax. Deferred tax assels and liabiliies are offset when they relate to income laxes levied by the
Same income 12X authorby,
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MARINE PARADE TOWN COUNCIL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March 2023

2.

29

2.4

2.1

Summarty of significant accounting policies (continued)
Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are staled al cost less accumulaled depreciation and any accumulated impainment lossas.
The cosi of plant and equipmantincludes the purchase price and any cosls directly atinbutable lo bringing the asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of aperating in the manner inlended by managament,
Dismantlerment, removal or restoralion costs are included as part of the cost of planl and equipment if Ihe abligation
for dismanliement, removal gr reslaralion is incurred as a consequence of acquiring ar using the plant and
eqLipment.

Subsequent cost recognised s added to the carrying amount of the assel only when it is prabable that economic
henefits associaled with the asset will low to the Town Council and the cost of the itern can be measured reliably.
All ather repairs and maintenance are charged lo slatement of income and expendilure when incurred,

Depreciation is chamged =sa 85 o wiile off the cost of assats over their eslimated useful ives, using the slraight-ling
method, on the Pllowing bases:

Furniture, ixtures and filtings o years
Office equiprment 5 years
Data processing equipment 3 years

The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for impainment when gvenis or changes in ckcumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable,

The eslimated usetul fives, residual values and depreciation melhods are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate,
at the end of each financial year.

The gain or loss, being the difference between the sales procesds and the carrying amounl of the asset, arising an
disposal or retirement of an item of plant and equipment is recognised in income and expendilure staternent,

Fully depraciated plant and equipment are retained in the inancia! slatements until they are no longer in usg.
Funds with fund managers

Funds wilh fund managers represent the market value of the porticlio of assets placed wilh fund managers at the
beginning of each maragement lerm plus investmernt incoma less managemerd fees payable during the
management {erm,

Funds with fund manzgers comprise mainly of equities, bonds, cash and fixed deposits. Equities and bonds are
staled on an aggregate portfolic basis and are designated as financial asset through profit or loss at inception in the
staterment of Binancial positicn,

Finaneial assets

Classification of financial assets

The Town Council classifies its inzncial assels in Lhe following measuremenl calegostes: (1) Amonised cost; (2)
Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVYTOC! and {3) Fair value through profit or loss {FVYTPL},

The classilication depends on the Town Council's business model for managing the inancial assels as well as the

contractuzl lerms of the cash lows of the financial as=el. Tha Town Council reclassifies debt instruments when and
only when its business mode! for managing those assels changes,
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MARINE PARADE TOWN COUNCIL

HOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
For the Financial Yezr Ended 31 March 2023

Z

Summary of significant accounting policies {continuad)

211 Financizl assels {continued)

Initial recognition

Financial assets are recognized when, and only when the Town Counal becomes a party o the conlraciusl
provisions of the inslrements,

Al iritial recognition, the Town Council measures a financial asset at its falr value plus, in the case of a financial
sscet not at FVTPL, fransaclion costs (hat are dirgctly abiribulable to the acquisition of lthe Bnancial asset
Transachon casls of financizl assets camied at FVTPL are expensed in income and expendilure slatement.

Trade receivables witholt a significant fnancing component is initially measured at the transaction price,
Subsagquant measuremant

Investments in debt instuments

Subseguent measuremenl of debt instruments depends on the Town Council's business madel for managing the

asset and the contraclual cash Now characteristics of the assel.

(i} Amorlised costs

Financial assets that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent salaly
payments of princigal and inlerest are measured at amorised cost. Financial assets are measured al amortised
cost using lhe effective interest method, less impaiment. Gains and losses are recognized in statement of
income and expenditure when the assels are derecognized or impaired, and through amorlization process.

Amartised cosl and effeciive inferast method

The atfective interest method is a method of caleulating the amorlised cost of a debt instrument and of allogaling
interest ncome aver the relevant geriod.

For financial instruments other than purchesed or onginaled credit-impaired Anancial assels, lhe effective
interest rate is the rate that exaclly discounls eslimated future cash receipts (including sl fzes and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effeclive inlerest rate, transaction costs and othes preamiums or
discounts) excluding expected credil losses, through the expecled life of the debt instrument, ar, where
appropriate, a shorler peniod, to the gross carrying amount of the debt inslument on inilial recognition. For
purchased or originated credil-impaired nancial assels, 2 credit-adjusted sffeclive interest rate is caloulated by
discounting lha estimated lulure cash flows, including expected credit osses, to the amortised cost of the debt
insbrumment on intial recogniticn.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which lhe financizl asset is measwred at inilial recognition
minus the principal repayrments, plus the cumvlative amorlisalion using the effective interest method of any
difference between that inilial zmount 2nd the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other
hand, fha gross camying zmounl of a Anancial asset is the amorised cost of a financial asset before adjusting
for any lozs allowance.

fity Fair value thiough other comprehensive income {FYTOCI)

Financia) assets that are held for eollestion of contraciual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where
the assels’ cash flows represent solely payrment of principal and interest. are measuvred sl FYTOCI, Financial
gssels measured al FYTOC! are subsequently measured at {air value. Any gains or losses from changas in fair
value of the Anancizl assets are recognised in other comprehensive income, exXcept for impaiiment losses. The
curnulalive gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is classified from equity to
statement of income and expenditure a5 reclassification adjustment when the financial asse! is de-recognised.
Interest income from these financial assels is included in olher income using etfective interest rate methed.
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MARINE PARADE TCWN COUNGIL

NCOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March 2023

2

Surnmary of signiflcant accounting policies {continued)

2.1 Financial assets {continued)

Subseguent measurement {contipued)

{iti} Fair value through profit or loss (FWTFL)

Debt instruments that gre held for rading as well g thoze Ihat do not meet the citeda for classification as
amaortised cost or FYTOCI are classifled as FYTPL. Movement in fair values and interesl incorme 5 recopnised
in Statermnent of Income and Expenditure in the period in which it arises. The Town Council measures its bonds
wilth hund manzgers at their fair valyes. Thess instruments are classified a8 FYTPL with movernents in their fair
values recagnized in Income and Expenditure Slatement, Met gaing or net losses on financial assets at fair value
through profit or foss includes interest income.,

Investrnents in equity instruments

For investmenis in equity inslromenls managed by lund managers, lhese are classiffed as FYTPL with movements
in their falyr value recognized in Income and Expendilure staternent. Met gain includes dividend income.

Irnpairmnent of financial assats

The Town Council recognises an zllowance for expected credit losses {("ECL") for all debl instrumenls that are
measured at amortised cost through slaternent of income and expenditure or the respective funds. The amount of
expected credil losses is updated at each reporing date to reflect changes in credit fisk since imlial recogmition of
lhe respective financial instrument.

The Town Council recognises [ifetime ECL for conservancy and service fees receivables and olher receivables
frelating solely lo lhe fee incurred and penalty fee imposed on oulslanding conservancy and service fees
receivables disclosed in Mole 11} using simplifed approach. The expected credit losses on these financial assels
are estimated using a provision matnix based on lhe Town Council's historical cradit loss expenence, adjusled for
factors that are specific 1o the deblors, general economic conditions and an assessment of bolh the currenl as well
#s the forecast direclion of conditions al the reporing date, including time value of money where sppropriate, The
following provision matrx is used:
Rate of Provision
Live accounts wilh arrears

inexcess of B— 11 months 25%
in excess of 12 - 23 monlhs 0%
in excess of 24 months 100%
Terminated accounts with arrears 100%;
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MARINE PARADE TOWHN COUNCIL

NOTES T THE FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Financial Year Cnded 31 March 2023

2.

2.1

Sumimany of significant accounting policies {confinued)

Financkal assets {continued)
impairment of financial assets {continued)

Any subsequent changes in lifetime ECL, both positive and negalive, will be recognisad immedialely in staternenl
of income and expendtlure or respective funds.

For all olher financial instuments (including cash at banks, other receivables, receivables for NRP, interest
receivables) the Town Council recognizes a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs uviless there has been a
significart increase in credit risk of the financial instrumenls since inception, in which case the loss allowance is
measared at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

For debl instnaments gt fair value through other comprassive income, the Town Council applies he low credit risk
simplificalion, At every reporting date, the Town Council evaluates whether lhe debt inslrument i= considered to
hiave low credit gk using zll reasonable and supporiable information that is avaitable without undue cost or effort.
In making that evalyalion, the Town Council reassesses the intemnal eredit rating of the debt instrument,

Significan! increase in credit sk

In assessing whether the cradit risk on a financial inslrument has increased significantly since inilial recopnition,
the Town Council cormparas ihe risk of a defaull ocouming on the financizl insllumenl a5 at the reponing date with
the nsk of a default occuming on the financial nstroment as at the date of intial recognilion, In making this
azzessment, lhe Town Council considers historical loss rates for each category of detitors and adjusts to reflect
current and forward-leoking macreeconomic factors aflecting the ability of lhe debtors to sellle lhe recevalles.

The Town Council assumes that the credil risk an a financial instrument has not increased significantly singe initial
recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrurment is determined o have low credit ask if (i} the hnancial instroment has a low nisk of defaoll, (i} the
borower has a slrong capacily to meet ils contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and (iil) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the longer fesm may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of
the bomower fo meet its conlractual cash fiow obliozslions.

The Town Council regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used lo identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit rsk and revises them as appropriste o ensure thal the crileria are capable of
igenlifying significant increasze in credit risk before the amoont Becomes past dua,

Crefinition of defauf

The Town Council considers the following as constituling an evenl of default for internal credit risk management
purpose as historical experience indicates that receivables thal mest eilher of the following criterta are genarally
nof recoverable;: (it where lhere is a breach of financial covenanls by the counterparty: or (i) information developed
internally or obtained from exlemal sources indicales thal the debior is unlikely to pay its creditors including the
Town Council in il withouf taking inle accounl any collalerals held by the Town Council.

Credit-impairad inanciaf assears

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a delrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have ocourred.
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MARINE PARADE TOWN COQUNCIL

NGTES T THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Financial Year Ended 31 March 2023

2,

241

2.12

Summary of significant ascounting policies {continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Wite-off podicy

Tha Town Council writes off a inancial asset when there is information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
Francial difficulty and there is no realistic prospett of recovery, .9, when Ihe counterparty has been placed under
liguidation or has entered into bankuptey praceedings, or inthe case of trade receivables, when the amounts arg
over seven years past dus, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assels writlen off may still be subject io
enforcement activities under lhe Town Council's recovery procedures, teking info account legal advice where
appropriate, Any recovenes made are recognised in slatement of income and expenditure.

Measuremen! and recognition of expeclfed credit losses

For inancial assets, the expecled credit 1085 is estimated as he difference bebween all conlraciusl cash lows that
are dug to the Town Council in accordance wilh lhe contract and all the cash flows that the Town Council expects
lo receive, discounted at the onginal effective interasl rate,

If the Town Council has measured the loss allowance for a inancial insrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines al the current reporting date that the conditions for lifefime ECL
are no longer met, e Town Council measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at the
current reporiing date.

Derecognition of financial assels

The Town Council derecognises a financial asset anly when the contractua] rights to the cash lows from he asset
expire, or when it transfers lhe financial asset and sutrstantizlly all the fisks and rewards of ownership of the assst
o another party. if the Town Council neither transfers nor relains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and contimues to control the transferred asset, the Town Coungil recopmises ils relained intecest in the
asset and an associated liabiliby for ampunts it rmay have to pay. If the Town Council retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Town Council continues lo recogrise Ihe
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received,

On derecognition of a financial assat measured at amodised cost, the difference bebween the assel's camying
amounl 2nd the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in stalement of income amd
expenditure.

Irmpairment of non-financial assets

The Town Council assesses =i the end of each reparling period whether there is any indicalion that those assels
may be impaired, If any suchindication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order Lo determine
the exlend of the impaiment 108s,

Where il is not possible 1o estimale the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Town Coungil estimales the
regoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. |f the recoverable amount of an asset
for cash-generating unit] is estimaled Lo be less than ks carrying amount, the casrying amount of the asset (cash-
generating unit) is reduced lo its recoverable amount and the impatrment losses are recognised as an expense in
staternent of income and expendilure.

Where an impaimment 1055 subsegquently reverses, the canying amount of the assel {cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extenl lhat the intreased carrying amounl
does nol excead the camying amount that would have been detemmined had no impaiment [oss been recoghised
for the asset (cash-genesaling unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impaimment 1oss is recognised as income in
stalement of income and expanditure.
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MARINE PARADE TOWN COGUNCIL

NOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMEHNTS
For Ihe Financis! Year Ended 31 March 2823

2.

213

2.74

215

Summary of significant accounting policies {continuad)
Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cesh on hand and demand deposils and other short term highly liguid
investmenls which are readily converlible o known amounls of cash and are subject ko insignificanl risk of changes
in value.

Financial Liakilities

Initial recognition, measuerement and derecognition of financial liabilitias.

A inancial kability is recognised at each reporting date whan, and oniy when, the Town Council becomnes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. The initial recognition of Anancial labilily al fair value is normally
represerted by the Iransaction price. The transaction phice for financial liability not classified at fair value theough
profil or loss includes the transaclion costs thal are direcily ativibulable to the acquisition or issue of the financial
lizbility, Transaction costs incumred on the acquisilion or issue of hinancial liability classified at fair value lhrough
profit or loss are expensed ofl immediately. The transaclions sre recorded at the date of transaction.

The financial iability is derecognised when, and only when, ils obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. On
derecognition, the difference bebween lhe carrying amount of the financial lisbilily deracognised and lhe
consideralion paid and payable, including any non-cash assets translered or ligbilities assumed, 18 recognised in
slatement of income and expendilure.

Subsequent measurernent

After inilial recognition, inancial lisbilities thal are not carried at fair value thiough profit or loss are subseguenlly
measured af amortised cosl using the effective interest method. Gains and [osses are recognised in stalement of
ingome znd expendilure when the lizbiities are derecognised, and through the amortization process.

Lease as a lassee

The Town Council assesses at conlracl inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. Thal is, if the contract
conveys the right to contral the use of an identified asset for a pericd of ime in exchange for consideration,

Ax lgsses

The Town Council applies a single recagnilion and measurement approach for all leases, excapl for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets, The Town Council recognises lease liabilities representing the obfigations
o make lease payments and right-ol-use aasels representing the ight 1o use the undedlying leasad assels,

Right-cf-use 3ssels

The Town Council recognises right-ol-use assels at the commencement date of the lease (ie. the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-ofuse assels are measured af cost, less any accomulated depraciahion
and imparment losses, and adjusted for any re-measuremant of leass liabilities. The cost of right-of-uss assels
includes the amounl of lease lisbilities recognised, initial direct costs incumed, and lezse payments made at or
tbefoie the commencement dale less any lease incenlives received.

Right-of-use assels are amortised on a straight-line basis over the lease term, as disclosed below.

Dala management syshem - G years
Qifice pramises - 1 year to 3 yoars
Cifice aguipmant - 2 years
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2,

2%

2.18

217

Summary of significant accounting polictes {continuad)
Lease as 2 lessae [continued)

The Town Council's right-of-use assets are presented in Mole 9.
Lease labililies

Al the commencement dale of The lease, the Town Council recognises lease lisbililies measured at the prasent
value of lease payments 1o be made over the lease temmn,

I catculaling the present value of lease payments, the Town Council uses its incremenlal borrowing rate at the
lease commencement dale beceuse the inlerest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After fhe
commencemenl date, The amount of lease liabilittes is increased to reflect the aceretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of tease fiabiliies is remeasured if therg is & modification,
a change in the lease term, 8 change in Ihe tease payments or a change in the assesament of an oplion to purchase
the underiying assel. The Town Council's lease liabililies are presented in Mole 14

Short-terrn leases and leases of iow-value assels

The Town Council applies the short-kenm lease recognition exemption to its short-lem leases of office premises and
equipment (i.e, those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
conlain a purchase option). it also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition edemplion to leases What are
congidered to be low value. Lease paymants on sho-term leases and leases of low value assels are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease temm.

FPayablas

Fayables are initially measured at fair value {net of transaction costs), and subsequently measured al amortised
cost, vsing lhe effective interest method,

Frovisions

A liability or provision is recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or conslruclive} as a result of a pasl
avenl, itis probable that an outltow of resources embodying economic benefits willhe requited to setlle the obligation
and a reliable gstimate can be made of the amount of the ghligatton. Provisions are made using best estimates of
lhe amounit required in setilement and where the effect of the lime value of money is malenial, the amount recognised
is the presenl value of the expenditures expectad W he required 1o setlle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reltects cument markel assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific ko the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as inlerest expense. Changes in eslimates are reflected in
staternent of income and expenditure in the peiiod they ocour,
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3

31

32

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparalion of the financial stalements in conformity wilh FRS requires the use of judgemenls, estirmates and
assumptions of the carrying amaounls of asseis and liahililies that wees not readily apparenl from other sources in
the application of the Town Council's accounling golicies. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be reasonable under the eircumstances,
Aciuzl results may differ [rom the eslimates.

Ctilical accounting eslimates and assumptions vsed that are significant ko the financial statements, and areas
involving a high degree of judgements or complexity, are descnibed helow.

Critfcal judgasments made in applying the Town Council's accounting palicies

In lhe process of appiying the Town Council's accournting policiss, the management is of ihe opinion thal there is
re instance of application of judgemenl which is expeeted to have a significant effect on the amounts recognised
in he financial slatements, apart from Lheses involving estimalions described betow.

Key sources of estimation unceriainty

The key assumplions concerning the future and ofher key sources of sslimation uncerainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilihes within
the nexl inancial year are 25 follow:

Allowanes for credil loss on conservancy and Service fees receivables

Upon adoption of FRS 109 Financial fnziruments, lhe Town Council measuras impaiment loss based on an
expected credit Ioss (ECL) on conservancy and service deblts and related interest chamed for late payment. When
measuring ECL, lhe Town Council uses reasonabls and supporable forwand-looking information, which is based on
assumptions for the future movement of diferent economic drivers and how these diivers will affect each other,
Probabitity of default constitutes a key input in measuring ECL. Probability of default is an eslimate of lhe liketihood
of defaull over a given lime hanzon, the calcutalion of which includes hislonical data, assumgptions and expactations
of ture conditions. The gross amount of conservancy and service fee and related ECL are disclosed in Note 11,
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4 Acowmulated surplus

Tha surglus for Ihe year slinbulabie 1o the varous activisies is cartad forwand 28 accomulaled surplus in fhe respective properies as follows:

Total Rasidantial Fraperty Commarcial Properly Carpark
Moty 0623 2ozz 2023 ez 023 Hi22 2023 a2z
¥ & 5 5 § % & 13
Dparating incoma
Caonsnrvancy and sennce fees 43,425,848 42 TAT. 3 FrI12279 37,028,368 5713569 5,708, 5566 - -
Less: Oparating intome iansfes 1o Ondingry Sinking Fund 5 11,280,727} {11.111,717) {9,805.199} (3.627,385) [1,485,528) {1,484, 332} . -
Qpersling incgne Weansfer lo Lilt Replacerrant Fuwd & 1G0T 6171 16,203,225} {5,278 716} (5183, 9G8) 4799,801) {709,257} - -
frninimiern requirad by law) 26,055,504 25,642,392 22 53T, 364 2&21r 01s 3428, 140 3,425,377 . -
Agancy laes 18 2,303,260 2712323 - - . - 2,903,250 2,712,323
Oher o 19 2,602,193 2000, 285 1, 800685 20055 002 T26, 820 T20. 826 3,708 24,408
#,580,957 31,155,004 24,518,025 4,272,067 4,154,550 4,146,203 2,967 968 2,736,731
Less; Operaling expendilura {35.7 18,4800 {12 497519 {25.556,554) (26,925,731 (4,367.113)  [5.906,582) {1.724.803) {1,665.204)
Oporaling (dafleil) ! surplus 14,937,520 11,342,518} {5.035,525) [2,653,656) [212,153) 239,621 1,113,165 1.671.537
Add:  Nonoperaling incomda 27 375 Sl 105 194,051 79593 16, 74% 7.293 16,575 71149
[Dafick) f surplus befora income tax and govarnmant grants {3,990,148) {1.258,213) (4,644, 489} [2,573,773) {195, 404) 246,912 1,128,740 1,078 646
Less: Income lay 17 0GR} (118,110) §119,557) (100,993} LI0E2T) (e Te {10,509 {B.245)
Less: Goods and senvices 13x 21 (115,801} [362.959) {101,754} (332 624) {39,047} {F31) - .
(Delicity f siwplus bkoes govemment grants {4, 466,630} (1, 730,288) (5,245, 788) {3.007,390} (240,072} 287 40 111823 1,069,701
Add:  Gouvermmen gradds 22 16,770,933 16,277,199 1E,313,344 16600633 457,790 BTG, 565 - -
Lass: Transfer lo Qedingry Sinkireg Fund 5, 22 (2,689, 344) (2622, 209) {2 685,483 [2.519,869) {2.861) {3 M0 - -
Less: Transler 1o Lill Replacement Furd B, 22 [8,.207,036) [9.134,474) {4,805, 01Z) (4,732 777 1902, 24 {401,697} - -
Less: Tranzler lo Town improverent and Project Fend 7. 22 (2668, 1586) 12,469,271] {2 626, A84} (2. 25,761 141,302} {263 5300 - -
G,208,172 6,051,245 2,195,163 a2 246 11,003 8,959 - -
SURPLUS / {BEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 1,739,542 4,220,957 49,380 3,134 BEE {229,063) Fa1: X0 1,998,234 1,063, 70
Add: Aesurnyzled sples as at 1 April 13,729, 158 10,202,737 11,293,232 9687 002 676,126 515,735 - -
Add {Less]:  Enler-furds iransfer ; - 1,119,231 1,059,701 - - £1.119.231) {1.059.701)
Add: Transier swrples frpm Town Improvement ard
Project Fund T 515,958 318,664 T} 285 228,761 115674 90,103 -
Lezs: Approprialion e Town Imaravarmant and Proxzct Fund 7 (I 00Dy {03, 200 {256,680] {767 088) [22, 120 {14€,112) -
ACCUNULATED SURPLYS AS AT 21 MARCH 16,205,859 13193?.353 15,665,448 13,253,2%2 540,411 676,126 - I
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5 Qrdinary Sinking Fund

Total Residential Property Commercial Property
MHote 2023 2023 2023 2022 23 2022
$ 3 § § 3 $
Balance as at 1 April 7650265854 74849505 47,960,180 A7 855820 27,078,774 27,153,686
Add:
Operating income transfer from conservancy and service fees 4 11,290,727 11,111,747 9.805,199 9,527,385 1,485,528 1.484 332
Investmen! and other income Sfi) 1,650,784 323,306 1,473,848 351,283 136,936 32,023
Transfer from government giants 4,22 2,680 344 2622 M09 2688 442 26818 888 24881 2,340
15,530,855 14117232 13,905,530 12,504,537 1,628,325 1.518,6595
Less: Expendilure 5(ii) {(21,232,806) {13740,189) {20,236,205) (12.161,245) (9977017 ({1.578.044)
Less: Incomea tax 17 {186,594) {65.077) (171,733 {59 B56) {15267} {5,421)
Goods and services tax 21 {181,038} (134,518} (175403} (123,276} {15,635} (11,242}
{Deficit) f Surplus for the year {6,080,083) 177,448 (6.576,811} 254,360 556,728 (76,812}
Balance as at 31 March 658,846,871 76,025,554 41,273,368 47 950,180 2T EF3E02 27 076,74
Represented by;
Current assets
Financial assats al fair vatue through profit or loss 10 40,527 223 -
Cash and cash eguivalents 13 31,300 778 73,335 400
Interest receivable 731,510 56,305
Conservancy snd service fees repeivables 11 252,755 250,931
Other receivables 12 50,893 368,657
Cue figm accomulated surplus 3.242.550 3,107 492
76114708  THLI1B.785
Total assets 6144708 7P 114,785
Less:
Current liabilities
Payables and accrued expenses 16 {6,912.665) (1,889.434)
Income lax payable 17 {255 283) {202 387)
{7.967.838) {2,091,3831}
MET ASSETS 68,946,071 73,026,954
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5  Qrdinary Sinking Fund (continued)

ti) nvastment and other income

Interesl income - ived deposits
Fair value gain from lirancial assels camed at fair value through profit or loss
Qilher Income

(it} Expenditura

Re-roofing works

Elactrical rewiring

Replacement of waler pump sels

E=zcalalor warks

Repairs and redecoration

Replacement of walsr pipes

Replacement of fire hghling & praleclion syslem
Consultaney lees and olher charges
Replacement of water tank lining

Replacement of (FRP) Waler Tanks

20232 2022
¥ §
729,068 362.60%
g20.¥11 -
505 =01
1,558,784 383,306
2023 2022
5 %
1.355.815 28,279
3,989,088 2,459,297
1688973 447,634
10,500 13.266
14,181,357 10,035,014
136.855 89,570
7534 1.860
£53,.453 557,138
418,525 30,000
- 7,831
21,222 806 12,748,158
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& Lift Replacement Fuid

Total Residential Froperky Commercial Froperty
Hole 2823 2022 2823 2822 2823 2022
3 % 5 ] 5 5

Balance as at 4 April 80,591,020 48,307,149 40,750,916 39,290 462 9,240,104 8,977 687
Ada:
Qperaling inconte ranster from conservancy and sedvice fees q 60758617 5.9583,225 5,279,716 5,183,968 709,901 7949 257
Invesiment income &{i} 426,942 252,077 851,100 240,148 75,842 21928
Funding for Ll Enhencenent Programme 4,566,274 320400 4,463,338 2,947 435 103,006 i72 674
Transfer from LEF Malching Granl 4,22 3,758,026 3722513 3,358,442 2,322,076 400,484 AQ0, 437
Transfer from government granls on S&CC, GST Subvention and LG 422 1,448,110 1,411,961 1,446 570 1,410,701 1,540 1,260

16,780,162 14,409 BAS 16,599,366 13,104,329 1,380,803 1,399,556
Less: Expendilure i1 {15.851.477T) {11,964, 135) {15,671.5651) (11,543 660; (339,926} {420.475)
Lezs: Income fax i7 (1575200 (44,503) {144, 756) {40, 878) {12,884} (3,715)

Goods and sarvices Lax 21 (169 770) {107 288} (155,866} {98,230 {13.904) {B.04%9)

Surplus f {Deficit) for the year 501,300 2.383.871 {512,807} 1,421,454 1,014,108 962 417
Balance as at 31 March 51,192,322 80,691 820 48,238,999 48 TED,916 10,954,213 8840, 104
Rapresenled by
Current assets
Cazh and ¢ash eguivalenls 13 48326070 AG, 055, 698
[nlerest receivaile 705,434 72253
Conservangy and senace fees receivables 1 136,102 135,117
Other receivables 12 3,129,806 5,684,233
Due lrom accunulated surplug 2,362,867 1,685,755

54,560,359 53,613,033
Total assets 54,680,195 RAE13.033
Less:
Current lizkilities
Payablas and accrued expenses 16 {3,265,962) (2,798,729}
Income tax payable 17 {202,115) (123,284}

(3,468,077} (2.922.013)
WET ASSETS E1,192, 322 50,691,020
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£ Lift Replacement Fund {continued)

N Investiment income

Interesl incame - ixed deposils
Interas) income - bank

{ii} Expendifure

Lifl cyclical maintenance works

Lifl overhauls and replacemenl| work s
Replacemeant of Lift Pasilion Display Pane!
Lifl Enhancement Programme

Frojecl management and other chargaes

2023 2022
] £
842,250 2H1. 312
B4 662 403,765
F26,342 262,077
2023 2032
E3 5
215811 2,434,610
9897439 5,577 88T
66,303 388,108
3523622 31373690
307,582 157 (G40
15,951,477 11584338
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7 Town Improvemant and Project Fund

Total Rasgidential Property Commercial Property
ok 2023 2022 2023 2042 2023 2022
% t] L b L) $
Balance as at 1 April 213,200 758,840 767 088 671,950 146,112 127,350
Transzler from government grants 423 2,568,386 24689271 2,626 484 2,205,741 41,802 263,53
Expendilure ) (2,765,627) {2, 95(,347) 12,693,287 (2,648,230) {72,340) {301.417)
Beficit for the year {97,241} {481 ,076) (GE.B03) (443,18%) {20, 43B) (37, BET)
Tiansier lo accumulaied surplus™ 4q (815,959 {318,864) {700,285} {228,761} (115 674} (90,103}
Apprapristion from accumulated surplus ** 4 274,000 213,200 256,680 FE7.058 22,3 146,112
Balance a5 at 31 March 279,088 {3,208 256 6B0 757,08B 22,328 148,112
Represented by:
Current asset
Due from accumulaled suiplus 279000 Q13,200
{i} Expenditura

Construclion of covered linkways 807,548 714,353

Construction of pavilion ez 262 482,719

Construclionfupgrading of playground, fitness corner etc 24 688 681,024

Residenls” and study cornar 406, 325 254,319

Cutdoor facililies 624 423 821,032

2,785,627 2,950,347

* gl the end of each inancial year, the Town Council veould Wrangfer any surplus or deficil fiom the Town Improvemest Project Fund 10 Lhe acourmulated surples,
** The anounl reguired by Town Improvement Project Fund for fhe following year would hen be appiopiialed from the accumulated surplus.
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8 Plant and equipment

Note

Cos|
A5 at 1 Apnl 2021
Additions

Wrritten off

As at 31 Mareh 2022
Additions

Written off

Az at 31 March 2023

Accumulated dopreciation

Az at 1 April 2021

Depreciation 20
Yifritten off

As al 31 March 2022

Depreciation 20
Written off

Az 2l 31 March 2023

Mot book value
A% at 37 March 2022

As at 31 March 2023

Furnifure,
fixtures and Office Data pracessing
fittings equipment equipinent Total
Y 5 5 3

Q20,182 201,187 187,142 1,308,521
11,795 2087 11.406 24,188

{368) {1,851) {43,008} {45.267)
931,612 202,283 155,540 1,208.447
14,255 2,107 20,720 37,082

- - {17,055} {17,056}
845874 204,330 158,204 1,309 468
802,538 188,009 114, 956 1,215,547
6,623 1,663 34 207 42 50%

(268) {1,891) {43,008) {45,267)
208,804 197,781 106,138 1,212 783
0,684 2085 32,700 45 479

; - {17,058) {17.056)
018,488 199,876 122,842 1,241,206
22 815 4,502 49,342 76,659
27,336 4,914 38,362 B8,262
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10

Data
managemeant Offtce Office
Right-of-use assels system pramises equipment Total
% % $ $
Cost
A al 1 Aprl 2021 and 31 March 2022 1857275 750,833 39,984 2648172
Additions - 407 062 44 541 451,603
End of lease term - {430,371} {39,584) {470.335)
As al 31 March 2023 1,857 275 T27 624 44 541 2629440
Accurnulated depreciation
Ag at 1 April 2021 77,386 188,225 21014 285,625
Charge to profit or loss 309,546 250,311 13,272 573,129
Az at 31 March 2022 386,932 438 536 34 286 850,754
Charge o profit ar loss 09 546 248 368 14,338 £72 252
End of lease tarm - 430,37 1) {38,954} {470,335)
As at 31 March 2023 696,478 256 533 8,650 251,671
Wat carnying amount
As at 31 March 2022 1,470,343 312 397 S578 1,788,418
As at 31 March 2023 1,160,797 471.0%1 5881 1,667 760

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The funds with fund manager are adminislered by Lion Global Investors Ltd. The fund manager is given
discrelionary powers within catain guidelines to inwvest the funds. The fund manager is entitled to charge a

morthly managerment kee based on the month-end nat assels valualion of the funds at an agreed rate.

Cash and fixed deposits included in invastment with fund manager cannot be lreely withdrawn for use by the Town
Council unil the expiry or termination of fund management agregmenl, This agreeement can be terminated by

gither pary giving a notice peniod of 1 month,

The funds are invested in aceordance with the Town Councils Acl,

Balznce at baginning of year
Additions during the year
[nlaresl income
Managemenl fees

Change in fair valus
Balance at end of the year

Al the end of the reporting penod, the investments wilh lund manager comprised the {ollowing:

Al Rir value

- Unquated Equily Fund

- Cluoled Bonds

Financizl as=ets at fair valug through profit or loss
Cash and fixed deposils (Mote 1.3}

Interest receivabiles

Taken up in:
Qrdinary Sinking Fund

2023
:3

40.006,000
504,132
{14,511)
331,080

40,820,711

2023
:3
£,954 415
33,572,808

40,527 223
64,918
228 569

40,820,711

40,820,711
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11 Consarvancy and sarvice kes recaivables

i2

Conservancy and service fees receivables
Less: Allowance for credit Inss
Mat

Taken ug Ine
Accumulated surplus
Qwdinary Sinking Fumd
Lift Repizcemeant Fund

Hote

2023 2022
] $
2B631,734 2831123
£1.573.047) (1. 702 870)
1,058,687 128,453
B69.810 TA42 205
252,755 250,971
136,102 135.117
1658687 1,128,453

Congervancy and service fags receivables are non-inlerest bearing and are genesaily on M0 days (2022 30 days) credil term.

Tha movaments in alleance Tor cradt [0ss are as lows;

Balance as at i Apnit

¥irile off Juring he year

Charge! (Reversal) 1o profit or loss
Balance 25 at 31 March

Other receivables

Deposils
Claims for Cilizens” Consullalive Commiltes funding receivable
Blthng for vaork caried cul, reimbursement from HOB

Billng fow work canad oul, reimbursement from coniractors
Ealtivegy for work carried out, reimbursement from MNEA
Racaivable rom bAND

GST receivable

Granl racewabls

SLRF funding receivable rom BO8

Other receivables®

Less; Mligwznce lor cradit loss

Mt

Taken up in:
Accumwdated surplus
Ordinary Sinking Furd
Lilt Replacement Fund

20

MHote

The movements n 2lloswance B credit I0ss Tor olher receivables are as follows;

Balance az al beginng of year
Chargef [Reverszl) 1o profil or loss
Wiitten off during the year
Bzlance as al year end

20

2623 2022
g 3
1,702,870 4,779,902
f155.624) {34517
58,601 (2.215)
1,575,087 1,702,870
2623 2622
3 >
341,352 170,722
3,024,103 1.725.335
57 564 186,568
75.184 £.568
34,061 -
456,881 1,286,477
- 503176
922 601 195,266
7,338,144 4,483,573
558 625 BB 586
{327 526} {410.515}
220493 430.073
7ATO A3 9,609,078
4,280,714 3,556,188
59.893 368 657
3.129.806 5.604.233
7 470,613 0,600,678
23 2622
§ 5
410,513 444,412
6,269 {7.192)
{72,276} (26.707)
357,525 415,513

*Other receivables consist of fee incurred and penally fee imposed on oulslanding consenvancy and service fees receivables.
ECL is provided an Ihe $3me basis a5 conservancy and senvice fees receivables.

32



MARINE PARADE TOWN COUNCIL

WOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINAKMCIAL YEAR EMDED 31 MARCH 2823

13

g

Cash znd shert ferm deposits

Cash on hand
Cash at banks
Cash and fisad depesils keld io lapsl by fund managess

Fixed deposils wilh finzncial instielions

Takan up in:
Accuruiated surpdos
Oredirary Sinking Fund
Lifl Replzcemcal Fund

Fixed deposiis
- Malartng in more than 3 monlhs
- Maluring willen 3 rmonths

Nota

10

2021 a0
% 5
11,000 11,000
18,981,314 34,044,244
54.919 -
19.057.230 34 088 244
82,000,000 104,000,000
161,657,230 138,055,244
21.430 382 18,664,146
31,300,778 73,335,400
48.326.070 46,055,688
161,657,230 136,055,244
. £5.000.800
£2.000.000 39,000,000
82,600,000 104 A0 GED

Fined deposits are placed for a penod of & months. The interest rates range rem 0.55% Lo 4,359, (2022,
0.4%% 1o 1.05%) per annom. The weighted averaga efleclive inlergsl rales per annum relating Lo fiwed

dEmrsils a5 4.05% (2022 0.63%).

For he purpose of statement of cash lows, cash and cash equivatents comprise 1he following;

Cash and shost term daposils
Less: Fued deposils maturktg moda Ihan 2 monihs

Less: Cash and ived deposits held in ifest by fend managers

Cash and cash equivalents per statement of cash Aows

Lease [fabilifies

Current lizholifte s
Mos-curment liabililies

Conlractusl cash Rows
Within 1 year

Year 2

Year 3

Year 4

Year 5

Less: Fulure inieres) exgenses
Freseni value of leasc liabdike s

Reoonciiation of movements of liatlitias te cash fows 2rizing from inandng aclivilies:

At baginning ol year
Mo leases gunng the year

Chamges fom inancing cash ows
Fepayment of lease lizbillies

Mon-cazh changes

Intarasl ciMnse

Al end of year

20

2623 2022
5 1
101,057,230 178,055,244
- (65, (10 (R0}
{64,919) -
190,352,711 73,055,244
2023 2022
3 $
315,124 504 805
243,800 1,044,184
5,455,090 1,548,710
582,304 550,547
475,811 516,440
431,319 313671
237,222 114,919
- 237222
1,725,761 1 33,388
(287,731) [eBd. 525}
3,459,030 1,548,770
2021 2022
$ ¢
1,548,710 2,111,236
451,603 -
(583,354 HE0E, S5}
52 411 6, 167
1,455,030 1 54B7 70
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13

18

Lease labitities (continued)
Amoant recognised in ncome and Expendilure peapric ] 20922

Leases under FRS 116
Inlerest expense on lease liabilities 52.011 46,167

The Town Council has enlered into lease contracls for its office premises. office equipmenl and dsts
management system. The lease for ofice premizes Iypicalky run for of 3 years, wilh an oplion 1o renew the lease
after that date, Lease payment are rénggobatad upon renewal based on prevailing market canditigns.

The lease term lor the data managemenl syalem is § years, wilh 3n oplion to enter for the matntanance senvices
aftar thral date. The Town Council reserves the righl to exercise for the oplion years bul the aplion years are not
recognised for the reason of uncertainly from business perspective,

Raceivables for Meighbourhood Renewal Programme {HRP) and Eleclrical Load Upgrading {(ELLY
Programane

2023 2022
3 $
Batanca as al 1 April 1,201 204 267,692
Funding krom govemment (925,5d44) {166.272)
Paymenls to conlractars G10.626 B01.784
(314.718) 633,512
Balance as at 31 March go6 486 1,201,284

Meghtourhond Renewal Programme ("MRP) was intradoced in August 2007 in rezponse 19 feadback received
from restdents during tite Foram on HOE Heanware ior more achive consullaleon on e mprovements o be
provided in their precinctz. Blocks built up W 1989 and have not undergone the kain Upgrading Programme
(MUP} or Interim Upgrading Programme (WP} are eligitle far NRF. The funding for the programme comes from
lhe government and is for the spechic vse of projects under the programme. However, if Lhe cosl of poject
works incurred exceeds the funding provided, the Town Coundil ras 10 bear e cosl of 2xcess expenditures.

The ELU Frogramme was inlroduced [0 vporade the inpoming 2lectrical sunply for HOB apanmenls blocks with
a 40 ampa main switch instead of 30 amp=.

Pavables and accrued sxpenses Hote 2023 2822
3 %
Acciuals lor completed works 334713 226,817
Acciued gperaling agpenses 13,699,470 7698 310
Refundable deposits 371,302 130,689
GST Payanle 41,062 -
Other paysbles 200,418 62,323
14,646,965 820,123
Taken up in;
Accumulaled surplus 4 468,449 3,901,976
Ordinary Sinking Fong i) 6.912.555 1,689,434
Liil Repacereant Fund & 3,265,962 2,798,720
14,645,965 2,620,129

Payatles are non-interest beanng and are generally on 30- 50 deays [2022: 30 - 90 days) credit 12rm.,

Ag al 31 March 2023, included in the accreed aperating expenses is an amounl of $348,857 (2022: 5129,260)
payable Lo lhe managing agent with & credit term of 30 days (2022; 30 days).
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17

Incame (ax
Mate 2023 2022
5 %
Current [ax expense 482 398 226,717
Under provision of lax in previous financial years 2,698 2063
485,245 228,780
Taken up in;
Accumulated surplus 4 140,681 119,110
Oidinary Sinking Fund ] 186,994 85,077
Lift Replacement Fund G o760 44,503
485,245 228,780

The lax expense on income differs from the amoynl deferminged by applying the Singapore slandand rate of

income tay due 0 Whe Milowing:

2023 2822
3 5
Taxable income and deductible expenses
Intergsl and invesimenl ingome 2,373,740 735,423
Government grams and other income 16773261 15,178,383
Trade income 661,608 Ga&2 035
Allmvahle expenses (64 ,480] {65,074}
19,744 129 7,514, 767
Tax calculated ab a ax rate of 17% {2022: 17%) 3,356,502 2,977,510
Tay remission of governmend granls under sechion 92(2) of
Singapore Income Tax ALl {2,836,113) (2,733,368}
Tax effect on concessionary income (20, 268) -
Singapore slatutory stepped income exemplion {17.,425) {17.425)
Currenl tax expanse 482 G35 226,717
Under pravizion of 1ax in previous financial years 2,508 2 063
485,295 228,780

The Town Council engoys a congessionary lax rale of 109% for ihe income 2ared on investment in bord.

The movemenis in income tax payaide ane 35 follows:

Hote 2023 2022

3 5
Balance as at 1 April L 7507813
Paymenls during the year (327 BEB} (433,636)
Currenl year income 1ax expense 482 896 226,77
Under proviston of 12x in previous financial years 2,508 2,065
Balance as & 31 March 712,304 554 097
Taken up in:
Accumulaled sumplys 2hd Q06 220216
Qrdinary Sinking Fund el 255,283 202,397
Lift Reptacement Fund = 202 115 123,284

712,304 554,897
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24

21

Agency feas

These are fees recaivad from rouling maintenance of HDB's car parks in the Town.

Other incoms

FPenazlty on lale payment of conservancy and sarvices fees
Liguidated damages imposed on contraclors

Temporary cccupslional ligenses

Usage of void deck, water, electricity and common propery
Oihers

General and administrative expendifure

Adverlising, pueblicily and poblic relations
Andil fees

Computer services and fees
Depraciation of plant and equipment
Depraciation of righl-of-use s=sels
Insurance premivm

Leazeg inlergsl axpanses

Office upksep axpendilure

Otice supplies and slationery
Others

Pioperty lax

Sl salaries and ralated expansas
Tetecommunicadion

Tewn Councitlors' allowsnces

Allowance { (Reversal} for credil loss on receivables, ne

Goods and Services Tax ["GST")

Mto

14

1112

2023 2022
$ $
1,120 98,022
174,540 372,823
2,121,636 2.137.422
164,862 133,171
70,015 58,848
7,622,193 2,800,785
2023 2022
5 3
68,439 104,044
72314 69,241
63,844 57,924
45,479 42,503
672,252 573,129
87,17 58,663
52,011 46167
130,448 123,160
£5.247 113,175
177,002 197,321
222.243 244,696
163 847 52,102
93,777 93,230
223,182 221,458
65,090 (9,407)
2,168,322 1,984,406

Govemment granls recaived by the Town Council are considered non-laxable supplies, Therefore, input tax claimable is
tased on a formula delermined by the Inland Revenue Aulhonly of Singapore. The unclaimable porlion is charged Lo

slalgment of ntcome and expandilure.

Digallowed input Lax in the respective lunds are as follows:

Accumulated sumplys
Ondingry Sinking Fund
Lift Replacement Fund

Mote

&h th

2023 2622
Y %
415,80 52,965
191,038 134,518
169,770 107.286
775,608 504,755
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22 GOvLrament grants

Gorattment granis Laken b [he siaiemand of ingorme and expendiluee and oiher comprehensine income during e year ane a8 follows:

Spevice and Consenvancy LIft Replacement Fund Paymant frem Tlizens
Talal Charges Grant Matchiry Srant Cansultative Comrmiless GST Subventicn Grant LIft Mzlntenance Granl
Hote Hza w2z 2023 2022 2023 2022 A 2082 023 dorgd 2023 2022
5 H] ] 3 % 5 ] H] -] 5 % %
Gowamaten] grants recevedirecevable 15,217,047 14,835, 1A 1,588,775 T850,033 3758006 3RS 2 EEB 385 2,469,211 £01 (G 197,400
GST Subverdion receivediracevable 1,953,851 1,437,581 - - . - - - 1.553.851 1,437,981 r r
4 16,770, 93 16,277, 1099 7088775 T 850,033 175926 3,722 514 2668 AB6 2469271 1,585 851 1.437 561 BO,000 7400
Less: Transfers o
- Thdinary Sinking Fund 4% {2,689, 3a4d) {2,622, 208) 2077082 2041 HE - - - - [404,002) [3F3.87T) (208, 260 (207, 324)
- Lift Replacement Fund o 6 {5,207 036) {5,134.474) {1.118,428) 11,099,013 [3,758.926)  (3T723.014) - - [217.542) (201,321} [1v2.1a0) L111.606)
- Towon Improavement and Project Fend 4,7 {2,66E, 3A5) {2.4A69.271} - . - - {2,668, 3H6) [2,189.271) - . . -
6206172 6,051,245 H.793, 265 A7 0022 - - - 952,307 862783 480,610 d78, 440
The Lolzl aragnt of granlz recaived (encluging grants recewed i advancal, sinca ke flormaticn of the Town Coungd, i5 a5 folow,
2023 20622
L 5
Balance 35 ol begineng of fite year A6A 602 447 A48, 325 248
Adg: Gram= recem-edireceivable 16,7 70938 1E.277. 143
Balance 3t af cnd of the year SEI.J?SQ_Q-ﬁ e EDZ 447
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24

25

Inter-fund transfors

The Town Council may make inler-fund transfers with the crileria a5 set oul in Section 47{12) and Section 52 1){i) of
the Town Counals Act 1888, and Rule 114 of Town Council Financial Rules.

Capital commitments

Approved Town Council's capilal expendilure bul not provided for in the inancial slatemenls as al the financial year-
end is as follows:

2023 2022
3 3
Amount approneed and contracted for Az 663,277 A9, 956,897
Amount approved bul not conlracled for 16,712,019 16,008 625

49,376,296 ___ 55,366,522

Signifizant related party ransactions

Maring Parade Town Coundl is managed by the managing agent. Mis CAW Services Operalions Ple Lid, Relaled
parly relates (o the managing agenl which provides key management personnel o the management of Town
Council's operations.

2023 2822
3 %
Town Councillors' allowances 223,182 221,458

The following are significant transaclions took olace between the Town Council and ils maneging agent on terms
agresd bebwaen the parties dunng the linancial year:

2023 2022
5 5
- Managing agenl fees 4,812 B67 4 516,113
- Project management and other faes 1,820,108 2.016,080
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Financial instruments and financial risk

The Town Council’s fingncial instruments comprized of cash and cash eguivalents, inveshmenls in financial assels carhigd al faic
vakue through proht or loss, conservancy and service fees receivables and oliter receivahles, acciued expanses and othar payables
Ihal anse rom its operalions.

The main risks arsing from the Town Councii's fingncial insruments are oredit risk and markel risk. The Town Council is not
exposed to foreign exchange risk, Risks management policies snd syslems are reviewed regulady lo reflect changes in the
aperalionsl envivenment ard mark el condilions.

Credit risk

Credil risk is the risk of loss thal may arse on cuistanding fingncial instruments should a counterparty default on ils ghligatons.
Financial assels subject Lo cradit risk consiz! principally of cazh balances with banks, conservancy and service lee receivables from
household owners, olher receivables and invesimenl securilies. The maximum exposure 1o credil nsk is the [air value of the
financial insirements al the end of ke inancial year.

The cash with banks are held with § regulated banks. For investiments in securilies. the Town Council minimise ciedit risk by dealing
with high credit rating counterparty, The other receivables comprizes mainly receivables from government agencies. Impairmeni of
these financial instruments are meazured on the 12-month expeciled credit Ioss bazis as there are no signifficant increase in credil
risk of thezes linancial inshrumenis since inidal recognition. The Towen Council considers thal these financial insiuments have low
credil risk,

For conssrvancy and service fees receivables, an ongoimy credit evaluation s perforned on the financiad condliEons of the
receivables and credit sses on are recognised o slatement of noome and exgendilere. The allowance for credit loss of
conservancy and seqvice fees recewablas lotalling $1,573 047 {2022 $1,702,670) Is deterained ak the reporting dabe [Mole 11),

The Town Council measures oss allowance for consenvancy and senvice fees recsivables using simplified sppmoach at an amownt
equal 1o lifetime expected credil losses ("ECLST), which is calculated vsing a provision matrix. As the Town Council’s historical credil
loss experience does nol indicale sinificanilly dilierent ioss patterns for dilferent deblor segments, e loss allmwance based on
past due stalus is not Aorher distinguished between the Town Council's dilfferent deblor bases.

The following table provides information aboul the Town Council’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for conservancy and service
fees receivables az gL 31 March 2023,

| Past due ]
B-5 617 12-23

31 March 2023 months months manlhs  over 24 months Tatal
Provistan on individual basis
Lifelima exgected ciedil loss rate 100% 100% 100% T00%
Gross carrying amounl of lerminated account {3} 165,155 26,505 28,721 61,4985 282 879
Lozs allowance of terminated acoount (&) [165.155) {26.905) (28,721) {61,458} (282879
Provisian on collective Basis
Lifelime exgeclad credil 0ss rate 0% 25% a0 100%%:
Gross carrying amounl excluding lerminated acoount {$) 501,965 321,712 430,781 924 334 2,348 B55
Loss allowance excuding terminated gocounl {3 - {80,443 (215,391) (994 334) 1,290,168}
Total loss allowance {365 155  06.548) (245112} (1,055 832} (1,573,047}

| Past due !

G.5 [} 12 -23

3 March 2022 months manths months  over 24 months Total
Provision an individual basis
Lifelime expecied credil loss rale 100% 100% 100% 00,
Gross carying amoum of terminaled account (5) 2oT 402 20,826 18,182 139,768 425 278
Loss allpwance of lerminsted acoount () {257, 3402) {20.9268) [18,182) {138,768} (436,278}
Provision on collective basis
Litetime expected credit loss rate i 25% S0%% 100%:
Gross camying amount excluding lesminated aocount (3) €10.757 ¥oasiy 592978 BAg 950 2414, 298
Loss allowance excloding lermingted account [5) - (B0,153) (296.489) (RS S50} [1.266,592)
Total loss sllowance 45‘!.402} {904, 07% 1314671} {1.029.?1 3] {1, 7028703
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26  Financlal tngtcumonls 3nd fnznclal risk (cont'd)
Cradit visk {cont d)

The Town Council keeps assessing ihe axpected credil loss rales based on the Town Councils higtorcsl credd (055 erpenicncs over e
pas| yaars, adusled for laclors [hat are specifc o the deblors, snd 3n aszesament of both the coment and forecasl general agonomic
cordileans 31 dte erd of the reparting peviod aver the expecied lives of 1he receivables.

There has bean no change in e asbmation technigees or signifcant assumplions made diging the clren regoring pertod. A vade
receivable is wriien olf when there iz infgrmalion indicating [hat the detor is i severe financral diflicully and there is ro realistic prospect
of racovery.

Thee is ng sonceniralion of cradil sk wilh respect 1o conservancy and service fees receivabies, a5 e Town Council has a large number
of househod owners

The 113l amownl recavable wom gach indivedual account is aged based on the earligs) invoice which is shill cuisizrding a3 at each month
end.

The Town Council's finartial asset an fair valoe through profil or bpss are conssdered Lo Be low risk invesimonls 38 he undedlyirg
imvestmens cemprise of Singapone government bonds ard Corporale Bonds willk 8 minimum credit rating of BBB- by Siamdard and Poor's
or oquivalenl. Accordingly, tha 10ss allowance is measwed based on 12-moniha ECL, The Town Cowcl detcrmines tha ECL to be
immatenal.

Flarkat risk

EQuily prive nck

The Town Cowncl 15 exposed 1o secwities prce sk from financial assels which are classified on the sialemerd of (nancal positon al f&ir
valure through mohil or bpss. Floctyations i fhe equaly prce sk of a secwrily may resl [fom parceived changes in fhe enderlyizg economic
cnaraclenslecs of e financial assels and the markel conditions. The inyeslment porifotio wilh furd managers are monitesed By [ha fund
manageds, on 3 regular basiz. $0 a5 10 355855 changes in furdamenials ard vatualion. Guidelines have peen sel by Ine Finange amd
frvesiment Conntllas ko marags the exposure of the investment pooilofe 50 25 10 reduce exposures 1o nmarkel wolalikly by diversihdng the
inveslmenl padlalke inla equities, bords and olher financial assets

At the end of Ihe reporting period, the Town Couencd has o iatal ivaslmend in unquoled equity fund of 56,954,415 A 10% increase
[deerase} i e underlying equwly prices. al tha repoding date would incresse (decrease) fnanoal a5sets ol faw valoe thiough pralit or loss
and ginking funds surphes by 35950442,

Inlerest 13le rigk

Cash Now interest rale figk i5 I8 dsk ihal havre cash fiows of a linancial instrement will fuclyate because of changes in markel inlerasi
rates. levest rate risk is lhe nizk that ihe vzlve of a finzncal inglremend will focluaie dec @ changes in market inleresl raies. The Town
Council’s inlesest cale vish pumady ralales Lo ils inletesl earning lixed depgsils with banks.

Anngaivity 8l

Atihe end of the raporting periad, if interas] rates hag e 100 (20227 100} bass poinls fower! higher wilh all olther variables held
constar. the Town Courcl's surplus nel of lax wondd have been S680,600 {2022 SB63,200} lowen' higher, ariging mainly 35 @ resolt of
lonwieddhighed inlere sl icome on ixed depasiis.

Ligesiclety vizk
Liguidity nsk is Ihe nisk (hal the Town Councl will encountar gilficelly in meeling fnanceal obligations duis Lo shofage of fends, The Town
Cowncil manages the liquidity risk by mainlaining sidlicieny cagn, inlemally genersied cash hows, 25 will a5 on basis of expecied payment

dates of [he fingncial lizbillkes,

The contracteal wndiscgunled cash fows of fngnopl 35scls and finanaal habikles due within 2 manlhs apEosumale e Camyng
amounts a5 the impact o discownting is nol signifecant.

1Lz gxpecied [hat aH he labiblies will be paid when duee. Tre Town Cogneil expecls 1o meslils cash commitments wath cash intows from
operaling activike s and govermmenl granis

Firancizl instruments by cateqory

The camyirg antounts of the difieren categivies of finzncial instruments olher than [hose disckosed on [he face of The slalemend of hinarcizl
posilion and in the noles (o ke Onancial slatements ore as follows:

2023 ez
5 $
Finarcial asseis at fair valye thrgugh proht e loss 40,527,223 -
Fingreoal azsels 31 amoisad cosl 112,050,867 149,632,330
Less: linancial liabifizies al amaonised cost 16,936 703 (10,168, 909)

el Ta%E41. 587 139,470,024
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a3

Fair value of firancial 235ets and Nzbilitios

The carring amounts of corrent financial assels and liabilities approamale their respeclive fair values due lo the relatively shor
tarm malurity of thesa fingncial instrementls,

The Town Coundil daas nol anticipate that the carying amounls recorded at lhe end of the feporting period waould ba sigmificanty
different Irom the values that wauld cyenivally ba received or sottled.

The fair value for gueoled bords at (zir vatue through profit o loss are deleimined by refeicnce 1o their quated Kd poces at the end
of Ihe reporting dale and are calegonsed under the Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy, The fair value of an ungquoted Equity Fund is
based on Ihe published nel azset value of the fund 3t the end of the reporting pednod. The equoily fund comprises of 2 portholio of
listed equites and hence classified under Level 2 of Ihe fgir value hierarchy,

Furds mianagemtent
The Town Councii's ghjeclives when managing funds are;

i) 123 safeguard the Town Councit's ability bo conbinue &5 going concemn;
{ii] b0 provide resources i sustain [uiure development; and
(i} 13 provide unds (3 the purpose of sirenglhening the Town Council's risk management capabiliby.

The Town Council actvely and regulady reviews and manages it lunding stiuclure 1o easure dpbmal lunding slochore, Laking into
cansideralion the fulure funding requirements. projecled operaling cash flows, projecled capital expendiluies and peojected
sirateqic invesiment opporunilies.

There were no changes in the Town Council's appreach to unds management dunng he year,
The Town Councilis not subjesl o externally imposed capital requirements.

The Town Council's (olal funds amounted 1o 3136624 052 {2022 5140.660,632).
Subsequent Everrts

On & June 2023, Tawn Council has gazetiad a 2-ter incigase in the Service and Conservancy Chame (SACC) for both residential
arnd commerozl wnils Tier 1 increase which ranges from 4 5% 1o §.5%, will be effective rom 1 July 2023 and Tier 2 increase which
ranges fram snother 5.8% 1o T.58%, will be efleclve from 1 Juky 2024,

Mintstry of Mationgl Development will 3ls0 be providing 8 fime-limited special grant eguivalent (o tha additional residential S&CC
income generated oo the gazelled SACC inceeasas lor Bnanceal wear 2023120249 znd 202472025, subjecl 1o a cap computad
based on 13% of Town Council's zudiled residentisf S&CC income lor the hnancial year cnded 31 March 2023,

8ased on Ihe gazetied SACC increase, Town Council hay estimated the following:
- $1.9miliion of addilicnal SRCC income ko residential and commercial umls, and $1.7 millkpr of tme-fimited special grant income
ta be recagnised i Ihe nancoal year 20202024,

- 84,7 million of addilionzl SRCC income for residential and commereal units, and $2.2 milion of fime-fimiled special granl income
o ba recognized i the finzncial year 2024/2025,
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